
 
 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA  
REGULAR MEETING 

(All items listed for discussion and possible action) 
 

Virtual Meeting 
 

Thursday, January 6, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call of Board Members 
 

3. Appointment of Deputy Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 

4. Audience Participation Period (limit 4 minutes per speaker) 
 
5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – December 9, 2021 
 

6. For Possible Action  
a. Resolution 2022-01 Posting of Meeting Notices 
b. 2022 Addendum to SEH Contract 

 
7. For Discussion 

a. Draft Ordinance Allowing Cannabis Delivery 
 

8. Reports 
a. Correspondence 
b. Mayor 
c. Members of Town Board  
d. Staff  
 

9. Future Agenda Items 
 

10. Adjournment 
 



                                                  Item #3 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022  
 
RE:  Appointment of Deputy Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 
  
Ms. Randi Gallivan will remain as an employee of the Town of Foxfield to train Ms. Julie St-

Pierre for a few months and potentially longer term on a limited basis as needed. Therefore, 

staff recommends the Board appointment Randi as the Deputy Town Clerk/Treasurer for the 

Town of Foxfield this evening, retroactive to December 9th, 2021.  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the appointment of Randi Gallivan as Deputy Town Clerk/Treasurer 
retroactive to December 9th, 2021.” 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

MINUTES             
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

December 9, 2021 
 

 
Call to Order/Roll Call 
The virtual meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. via Zoom. 
 
The following Trustees were present:  Debby Farreau, Josie Cockrell, Pam Thompson, Lori Finch, 
Scott Freas and Mayor Jones.  A quorum was present. 
 
Introduction and Appointment of Town Clerk/Treasurer 
Town Administrator Proctor introduced Julie St-Pierre who was recommended by the interview 
committee for appointment as the new Town Clerk/treasurer.  Mayor Jones moved to approve the 
appointment of Julie St-Pierre as Town Clerk/Treasurer contingent upon the pending background 
check.  The motion was seconded by Trustee Finch and passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Audience Participation 
Allyson Zoellner, 16915 E. Costilla Avenue, welcomed Julie St-Pierre and commented on how many 
houses have beautiful holiday lights. 
 
Shadia Ahmad, 7271 S. Quintero Street, thanked Town Clerk Gallivan for her many years of service. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Mayor Jones moved, seconded by Trustee Thompson, to approve the following items on the Consent 
Agenda: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes – November 18, 2021 
b. Treasurer’s Report – November 2021 

 
The motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Public Hearing – 2022 Budget 
Mayor Jones opened the public hearing at 6:35 pm. 
 
Jerry Zoellner, 16915 E. Costilla Avenue, asked if the budget included any ARP funds. 
 
There were some questions from Trustees Farreau, Thompson and Freas concerning the newly-
created roads maintenance fund.  Town Administrator Proctor assured the Board that since they 
passed the resolution committing funds to roads maintenance that money will be available for the 
$300,000 in the 2022 budget. 
 
Mayor Jones closed the hearing at 6:42 pm. 
 
Mayor Jones moved to approve the 2022 proposed budget, seconded by Trustee Finch.  The motion 
passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
 



 
 
For Possible Action 
Resolution 2021-10 Adopting a Budget, Levying Property Taxes and Authorizing 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2022 
Mayor Jones moved to approve Resolution 2021, Series 10, Adopting a Budget, Levying Property 
Taxes and Authorizing Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2022, seconded by Trustee Thompson.  The 
motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Resolution 2021-11 Authorizing Supplemental Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2021 
Mayor Jones moved to approve Resolution 2021-11 Authorizing Supplemental Appropriations for 
Fiscal Year 2021, seconded by Trustee Thompson.  The motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
For Discussion 
Gates 
Karrie Bem, 7388 S. Richfield St., loves the gates.  She saw 12 cars turn around at the gate and 
thanked the Board for representing the interests of the people of Foxfield.  She asked if using the 
keypad is illegal for non-law enforcement access. 
 
Vanessa Guzman, 18149 E. Hinsdale Ave, thinks the gate arms are too easy to push out of the way.  
She thinks Foxfield needs a management team for the gates.  She also reported she saw a Chenango 
resident using the keypad. 
 
Allyson Zoellner, 16915 E. Costilla Avenue, is saddened by the amount of vandalism and number of 
people driving around the gates.  She suggested keeping the gates closed 24/7 for a while and don’t 
give gate tags to non-residents for at least a year.  She says the gates are too vulnerable to 
vandalism and would like to see cameras installed. 
 
Jerry Zoellner, 16915 E. Costilla Avenue, said we should keep the status quo and not allow non-
residents to have access to the gates.  He also would like to see cameras installed at the gates. 
 
Regarding the proposal to hire a Gatekeeper, Trustee Cockrell said it could be more than one person 
to split the duties.  Trustee Thompson said the Traffic Committee could form a management team for 
the gates.  She also suggested a sign at the gate with a number to text if the gate is not working. 
 
Shadia Ahmad, 7271 S. Quintero Street, is happy the gates are in place.  She suggested reflective 
vests and traffic cones when anyone is working on the gates.  She is in favor of cameras.  She also 
suggested signs saying a gate tag is needed to open the gate. 
 
Town Administrator Proctor will reach out to the Sheriff’s Department about enforcement using the 
camera download, as well as what type of camera they would suggest.  She will also look into 
GroupMe, a mobile group messaging app. 
 
The Board agreed to turn off the gates on all Federal holidays and during inclement weather.  The 
town will check with Terracare Associates about snow plow access. 
 
Trustee Thompson requested barriers so vehicles cannot drive around the gates.  The delineators are 
not stopping people so the Board agreed to get bids for split rail fences blocking those paths.  She 
also noted that speeds are higher than before and some form of speed mitigation is necessary. 
 
Reports 
Mayor 
Mayor Jones reported she is still receiving a multitude of angry emails from residents in Chenango 
and Chapparal.   
 
 



 
 
Members of the Town Board 
Trustee Farreau said she had gotten many positive comments regarding the gates when she is out 
there repairing them. 
 
Trustee Finch noted the comments she has received about the gates have been more positive than 
negative. 
 
Trustee Thompson reported Centennial Airport had its highest fuel sales ever in November, indicating 
an increase in air traffic.  They expect noise complaints to increase also. 
 
Town Staff 
Town Administrator Proctor reported that Terracare Associates is finishing up the initial clean-up 
areas in the Open Space.  She will again ask the Mile High Flood District to reseat the grate in the 
outflow channel. 
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting at 8:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
                                                                       Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk 
 
                   
                             
      _________________________________________  
      Lisa Jones, Mayor  
 



  Item # 6a 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Randi Gallivan, Deputy Town Clerk 
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022 
 
RE: Resolution 2022-01 Designating Public Places for the Posting of Meeting Notices 

as Required by the Colorado Open Meetings Law 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached for Board consideration is Resolution 2021-01 designating the Town website as the 
official posting location for meeting notices.  The Town may additionally post notices on any 
Town social media sites and at the three physical bulletin boards but that is not required by 
state statute. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to approve Resolution 2022-01 Designating Public Places for the Posting of Meeting 
Notices as Required by the Colorado Open Meetings Law”. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Exhibit A:  Resolution 2022-01  
 
 
 

 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text



Trustee’s Resolution Resolution No. 01, Series 2022 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD 

DESIGNATING PUBLIC PLACES FOR THE POSTING OF MEETING NOTICES AS 

REQUIRED BY THE COLORADO OPEN MEETINGS LAW 
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §24-6-402, the Open Meetings Law, requires that the public place or 

places for posting notices of public meetings shall be designated annually at the local public 

body's first regular meeting of each calendar year; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The Board of Trustees of the Town of Foxfield, in compliance with C.R.S. 

§ 24-6-402(2)(c) of the Open Meetings Law, hereby designates the Town website at 

https://townoffoxfield.colorado.gov as the official place for posting notices.  The Town may 

additionally post notices at any Town social media accounts and the bulletin boards at the 

following locations: 

 

a.  The east side of East Easter Way at its intersection with East Fremont Avenue. 

 
b.  The east side of South Richfield Street just north of its intersection with East Davies 

Avenue. 

 
c.  The east side of South Waco Street just south of its intersection with East Davies 

Avenue. 

 
The Town Clerk shall be responsible for posting the required notices no later than twenty-four 

(24) hours prior to the holding of the meeting.  All meeting notices shall include specific agenda 

information, where possible. 
 

 
 

PASSED ON FIRST AND FINAL READING THIS _______
 
day of January, 2022. 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO 
 
 
 

 
Lisa Jones, Mayor 

  ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Randi Gallivan, Deputy Town Clerk 

 

https://townoffoxfield.colorado.gov/
clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



                                                  Item # 6c 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 06, 2022  
 
RE:  2022 Addendum to SEH Contract 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Attached is SEH’s proposed 2022 rates and draft contract addendum.  The rate increases reflect 

2022 annual salary adjustments of 3%.  The Board is asked to acknowledge that the original 

signed contract and general conditions will remain and the Town of Foxfield is approving the 

rate increases through the end of 2022.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

“I move to approve the 2022 Addendum to the SEH Contract.” 

 

ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit A – SEH 2022 Contract Addendum and Rates Letter Proposal 

 

 



 
 
 

ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

THIS ADDENDUM TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT is made and entered 
into this ___              day of 2022, by and between the Town of Foxfield, Colorado (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Town") and Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 
"Consultant"). 

 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Effective January 1, 2015, the Town and Consultant entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement (the "Agreement"). 

 
 

year. 
B. The parties desire to extend the Agreement with this Addendum for one additional 

 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed that for the consideration hereinafter set forth, 
Consultant shall provide to the Town, the additional work as needed in the manner provided in this 
Addendum. 

 
1. The contract term for the Agreement is hereby extended by this Addendum for one 

additional year, from January 1, 2022, through and including December 31, 2022. 
 

2. Consultant shall perform all work as set forth in the Agreement in accordance with 
Consultant's rate schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated by this reference. 

 

3. The original Agreement is in full force and effect and is hereby ratified by the Town 
and the Consultant. The original Agreement and this Addendum constitute all of the agreements 
between the Town and the Consultant. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate. 
 

TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO 
 

By: 
_______________________________ 
Lisa Jones, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________      
Miranda Gallivan, Deputy Town Clerk 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



CONSULTANT 

By:   ____________________________________ 

    Name/Title:  Michael Russell / Principal____ 

NOTARY BLOCK: 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )ss.

COUNTY OF ____________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________, 20__, by ________________________, as ______________ of 
_________________________. 

My commission expires: ______________________. 

SEAL  __________________________________
Notary Public 

Denver

29th
December 21 Michael Russell Principal
SEH

9/5/2022

20184035256-087469

mrussell
Mike Signature



Exhibit B  
 

Rate Sheet 
Through December 31, 2022 

 
 
Name Title Hourly Rate 
Mike Russell, Mike Perez, 
Chuck Gustafson, Josh 
Anfinson 

Principal / Group Manager $234.00 

Scott Jardine, Steve Kaye, 
Jason Triplett, Tom Wrona, 
Matt Massa  

Senior Project Manager $208.00 

George Robinson Survey Manager $212.00 
Erica Olsen, Tim Nuetzel, 
Annette Marquez, David 
Hoesly, Matt Massa 

Senior Project Engineer II  $181.00 

Steve Halewski, Josh Sopata Senior Project Engineer I $165.00 
Scott Klinker Survey Office Manager $152.00 
Kevin Martin, Josh Lord Survey Field Chief $130.00 
Kit Clunis Professional Engineer II $145.00 
Craig Sweney, Justin Jones, 
Craig Burgess, Mitch Wagner, 

Professional Engineer I $130.00 

Katie Croell, Gavin Macwilliam Staff Engineer II $120.00 
Craig Hayson, Abril Gonzalez-
Torres 

Staff Engineer I $110.00 

TBD Senior Designer $135.00 
TBD Designer  $  99.00 
Suzie O’Connor Accounting $129.00 
Jessica Pease, Kari Young Administration $  98.00 
Bob Ewing Utility Locator $101.00 
TBD Engineer Intern $  80.00 
Adam Jones Survey instrument person $113.00 
   
Expenses   
Tier 3 Drone  $135.00/Hr 
3D Scanner (SX-10)  $35.00/Hr 
Survey Equipment  $30.00/Hr 
Magnetometer  $10.00/Hr 
Subconsultants (preapproved)  Cost + 5% 
Vehicle Mileage  Current IRS Federal 

mileage rate 
Field Vehicle  $4.50/Hr + mileage 
All other expenses  At cost 

 
  
 
 

12/29/2021 
T:\DSME\Public\Foxfield Town Engineer\2022\Foxfield 2022 On-Call Addendum & Rates - Final.docx 



 

 

Engineers   |   Architects   |   Planners   |   Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 2000 South Colorado Boulevard, Suite 6000, Colorado Center Tower One, Denver, CO 80222-7938 

SEH is an equal opportunity employer   |   www.sehinc.com   |   720.540.6800   |   800.490.4966   |   888.908.8166 fax 

 
December 29, 2021 RE:    Town of Foxfield 2022 On-Call 
                Engineering Services Contract 
                
  
                
Ms. Karen Proctor 
Town Administrator 
Town of Foxfield 
P.O. Box 461450 
Foxfield, CO 80046 
 
 
Dear Karen: 
 
Please find attached SEH’s proposed 2022 rates and draft contract addendum. Similar to past updates, the 
rate increases reflect annual salary adjustments.  
 
After review of the statement below, if all looks acceptable, please sign and return a copy for my files 
acknowledging the originally signed contract and general conditions remains in force, and that the Town of 
Foxfield finds our rates to be acceptable through the end of 2022. 
  
"The agreement entered into between Short Elliott Hendrickson Incorporated and the Town of Foxfield, 
signed and dated, December 14, 2014, is hereby extended through December 31, 2022, and SEH’s 
attached 2022 Rate Schedule is hereby accepted".   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

 
 
 

Scott Jardine, PE (CO), LEED AP          
Project Manager    
 
 
Accepted for Town of Foxfield 
 
By:  ___________________________                                         
 
 
Title: __________________________ 
 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 
 
Attachments: 2022 Foxfield Contract Addendum, SEH 2022 Rate Schedule  
Cc:  Mike Russell, PE, Principal – Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc. 



  Item # 7b 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  January 6, 2022 
 
RE: Draft Ordinance Adding a New Article 6 of Chapter 6 Regarding Marijuana 

Delivery Within the Town 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached for Board discussion is a draft Ordinance to add a new Article 6 to Chapter 6 of the 
Foxfield Municipal Code regarding Marijuana delivery within the Town of Foxfield. 
 
Under a law passed in 2019, and effective January 1, 2020, if the Town would like to allow 
medical and recreational marijuana businesses to deliver their products to customers in the 
Town, the best practice is to enact an Ordinance specifically allowing such practice.  If the Town 
does allow it, we will receive the sales tax paid on deliveries within the Town. 
 
In addition to the draft Ordinance, attached is the language from the Colorado Revised Statutes 
regarding both medical marijuana delivery (C.R.S. § 44-10-501(11)), and retail marijuana 
delivery (C.R.S. § 44-10-601(13).  In addition, the Marijuana Enforcement Division (MED) has 
adopted rules regarding delivery, which are also attached. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Exhibit A:  Draft Ordinance 2022-01  
Exhibit B:  Medical Marijuana Delivery Statute 
Exhibit C:  Retail Marijuana Delivery Statute 
Exhibit D:  MED Rules re Delivery of Marijuana 
 



12/29/2021 
HTTPS://D.DOCS.LIVE.NET/63D8B8F846219921/00 TOWN OF FOXFIELD/00 MEETING PACKET/2022/01 JANUARY 2022/01-06-22/ORD 

MARIJUANA DELIVERY.DOCX 

Trustee Bill No.                                                           Introduced by  

Series of 2022 

Town of Foxfield 

 

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 6 OF CHAPTER 6 

REGARDING MARIJUANA DELIVERY WITHIN THE TOWN 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

FOXFIELD, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  The Town of Foxfield Municipal Code is amended by the addition thereto of a 

new Article 6 of Chapter 6 to read as follows: 

ARTICLE 6 

Marijuana Delivery 

Sec.  6-6-10.  Delivery of Medical Marijuana. 

(a) The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Town Clerk to 

administratively approve the issuance of a medical marijuana delivery permit to 

any licensed medical marijuana business.  The permitting procedure shall comply 

with C.R.S. § 44-10-501(11).   

(b) All deliveries made within the Town shall comply with C.R.S. § 44-

10-501(11) and 1 CCR 212-3.   

(c) All medical marijuana and medical marijuana infused products 

delivered to an address within the Town are subject to Town sales tax. 

Sec.  6-6-20.  Delivery of Retail Marijuana. 

(a) The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Town Clerk to 

administratively approve the issuance of a retail marijuana delivery permit to any 

licensed retail marijuana store and licensed retail marijuana transporter.  The 

permitting procedure shall comply with C.R.S. § 44-10-601(13).  

(b) All deliveries made within the Town shall comply with C.R.S. § 44-

10-601(13) and 1 CCR 212-3.   

(c) All retail marijuana and retail marijuana infused products delivered 

to an address within the Town are subject to Town sales tax. 

  

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



12/29/2021 
HTTPS://D.DOCS.LIVE.NET/63D8B8F846219921/00 TOWN OF FOXFIELD/00 MEETING PACKET/2022/01 JANUARY 2022/01-06-22/ORD 

MARIJUANA DELIVERY.DOCX 

Section 2.  The Town Board of Trustees hereby finds, determines, and declares that this 

Ordinance is promulgated under the general police powers of the Town of Foxfield, that it is 

promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary 

for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  

Section 3.  If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a court of competent 

jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other persons or circumstances. 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after final publication. 

Adopted as Ordinance No. 02 Series of 2022, by the Board of Trustees of Foxfield, 

Colorado, and signed and approved by its Mayor or presiding officers this ____ day of 

_______________________, 2022. 

 

______________________________ 

Lisa Jones, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Julie St-Pierre, Town Clerk Town Seal 

 

___________________________________ 

Corey Y. Hoffmann, Town Attorney 

(Approved as to Form) 



clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B













clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C















clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit D
















